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AFFIDAVIT

Trevor Manuel



IN RE: JUDICIAL COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO ALLEGATIONS OF STATE
CAPTURE, CORRUPTION AND FRAUD IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR INCLUDING
ORGANS OF STATE

AFFIDAVIT

I, the undersigned,

TREVOR ANDREW MANUEL

do hereby make oath and state that:

-l

I am an adult male, living in Johannesburg.

The facts contained in this affidavit are within my personai knowledge, except
where the context indicates otherwise, and are both true and correct,

| served as the Minister of Trade and Industry from 1994 until 1996 and
subsequently as the Minister of Finance from 1896 until 2009, during the
presidencies of Nelson Mandela, Thabo Mbeki and Kgalema Motlanthe. | was
the Minister in the Presidency for the National Planning Commission from 2009
to 2014 under President Jacob Zuma. | am currently the Chairperson of Old
Mutuai Limited.

| have served on the National Executive Committee ("NEC") of the African
National Congress ("ANC") for 21 years from 1991 to 2012.

On 1 October 2018, the Secretary of the Commission, Mr Khotso De Wee,
contacted me to provide insight into statements made by Mr Fikile Mbalula
("Mr Mbalufa") at an ANC NEC meeting in 2011.

| attended the ANC NEC meeting in 2011 at which we discussed the influence
of the Gupta family on government affairs, amongst other matters.
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At this meeting, Mr Mbalula tearfully recounted that he had been summoned
to the Gupta residence in Saxonwold, Johannesburg, where he was informed
by Mr Atul Gupta that he would be promoted from Deputy Minister of Police to
Minister of Sport and Recreation,

Mr Mbaiula recounted that Mr Zuma's announcement of the Cabinet reshuffie
and his appointment as Minister of Sport and Recreation was made after his
meeting with Mr Atul Gupta at his Saxonwold residence. | recall that he was
visibly disturbed that Mr Atul Gupta had been the person to inform him of the
ministerial appointment.

In 2017, Mr Mbalula and | engaged in a robust exchange of correspondence,
| wrote an open letter to Mr Mbalula, published in the Daily Maverick on 7 June
2017, in which | recounted his statements as:

*Odd, because | have a clear memory of an incident that may be at the heart
of why you have responded to me in the manner you have. Thaf memory
goes back to an ANC NEC mesting in August 2011. There, the Fikile Mbaluta
we once knew wept as he spoke. He explained he'd been called to
Saxonwold by the Guptas in May 2609 and was told that he was being
promoted from the position of Deputy Minister of Police to Minister of Sport,
A few days lafer the President confirmed this change. The weeping was
about the fact that he, Fikile, was happy that he'd made if into Cabinet but
that it was wrong to have fearnt this from Atul Gupta. That weeping was then,
and this is now. Perhaps there are still a few debls to be called in by

Saxonwold."
{ annex a copy of the open letter as TM1.

As far as | amn aware, Mr Mbalula has never publicly denied my account of his
tearful confession. On 17 June 2017, Mr Mbalula responded to my description
of his contribution at the NEC meeting as follows:

"Manuel decided not to deal with the substantive issues | raised in my opinion
but carry on at a tangent about me crying after the Gupta family got fo know
possibly from someone close to the president that | was to be nominated fo be
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12.

13.

Sport Minister, we can all make guesses as fo how this information may have
been leaked to them. Newspapers too usually get these sort of leaks and
announce or speculate abouf them before the president does.

Manuel did not understand what my tears were about. He did not get the point
then. | am on the record as stating that | have fundamental problems with the
way capitalists operate and the Gupta family show us just how ugly capitalism
is. Indeed, they abused privately learnt information to fry fto position
themselves somehow. | was not about that, which is why | was the first to report
this to the open NEC. | am stifl not part of that; | do nof stand for that. On the
other hand, Manuel was one of the people who af that NEC meeting did not
agree with my stance on the Gupta family."

| attach Mr Mbalula's full response, published as an open letter in the Daily
Maverick, as TM2.

When consulting with my legal representatives in preparation of this affidavit,
I noted in my open letter (TM1) that Mr Mbalula met Mr Atul Gupta in May
2009. However, having regard to the sequence of events, this was in error as
the visit must have taken place in October 2010, shortly before Mr Mbalula's
appointment as the Minister of Sport and Recreation on 1 November 2010.

I have nothing further fo declare regarding Mr Mbalula's statements at the NEC
meeting and confirm that | am available to assist the Commission when called

upon to do so in future.

—
"~ TREVOR ANDREW MANUEL
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I HEREBY CERTIFY that the deponent has acknowledged that he knows and
understands the contents of this affidavit, which was signed and sworn before me
al £ gnpFo _ on the //Tday of OCTOBER 2018, the

regulations contained in Government Notice No R1258 of 21 July 1972, as
amended, and Government Notice No R1648 of 19 August 1977, as amended,

having been complied with.

S
41 ALICE LANE
SANDTON
¥ OFFICIO
SRAcTiSING
ATTORNEY &
RS.A
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Fikile, do you remember the tears you shed over the Guptas? | Daily Maverick Page | of &

™1

Opinionista « Trevor Manue! + 9 June 2017

Fikile, do you remember the tears you shed over
the Guptas?

€ 2043 Reactions

I'have tried, unsuccessfully, to understand the
purpose of the article that was first published in your
name in the Daily Maverick. You clearly did not
understand what I said in the recent panel discussion
about Nelson Mandela’s economic legacy.

f 7 % Follow J {__ — B Save . B J

Dear Fikile,

The drafters of your letter to me try, unsuccessfully, to weave a story that
drifts from Andre Odendaal, Moeletsi Mbeki, Anton Lembede and Martin
Luther King, to lies about our household income. The only result is absolute

confusion.

I'stand by what I said at the Nelson Mandela Foundation: the term “White
Monopoly Capital” was conjured up by Bell Pottinger on behalf of the Guptas,
and filtered into the political discourse to serve their agenda. Since then I
have become aware of the specificity of the facts. As Ranjeni Munusamy
reminds us, the term was developed by Bell Pottinger’s Victoria Geoghegan,
who in an email to Duduzane Zuma styled “White Monopoly Capital” as a
narrative and filtered it into the discourse via Collen Maine, Andile
Mngxitama and Mzwanele Manyi.

hﬁps://www.dailymaverick.co.zafopinionistafzo17-06-09—ﬁki£e-do-you—remember—the... 08/10/2018
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Fikile, do you remember the tears you shed over the Guptas? | Daily Maverick Page 2 of 8

The idea of ‘White Monopoly Capital’ (WMC) is a ruse to draw attention away
from our pressing policy priorities. It is for this reason that I asked what the

alternative is:
“Is it Indian Monopoly Capture out of Saxonwold?”

In case you haven’t understood my initial statement, this is a specific
reference to the wheeling and dealing of the Guptas. It goes without saying
that the scandalous conduct of this particular family must be separated from
the significant contributions to the liberation struggle of many thousands of
peopie of Indian origin.

To recast for your benefit, WMC is an instrument of propaganda that draws
attention to one issue in a maunner that ignores the realities confronting us. I
must assume from your implacable belief in its existence that you have
consumed the idea — hook, line and sinker.

I agree with the views of the SACP, as expressed in their recent statement
following the Central Committee meeting of 2-4 June, that one of the
“features of the Gupta parasitic-patronage network” is “a diversionary
populist ideclogical platform”, Amongst other insightful points the SACP
makes, which you would do well to read carefully, it says:

“In the face of growing public exposure of their misdeeds, there have been a
number of ideological interventions from the parasitic-patronage faction.”

If you also took the trouble to read the Economics Resolutions of each ANC
Conference since the 49th in 1994, you will not find the language of “White
Monopoly Capital’ in any of them. This is because WMC is not part of the
lexicon of terms used in ANC policy. It was conjured up as a red herring to
obscure the misdeeds of the Guptas and those who benefit from their
patronage network.

Words are important, and in the political economy terms such as monopoly

have a distinct meaning. The tasks at hand remain enormous. I would

welcome a rational policy discussion with you but that depends on your

getting facts right. To use terms such as “negliberal sleeper” io deseribe me

obfuscates the real issues. Extensive research, including by international E-'Z(
economists, has established that South Africa has the most redistributive %

https://www.dailymaverick.co.za/opinionista/20] 7-06-09-fikile-do-you-remember-the... 08/10/2018
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Fikile, do you remember the tears you shed over the Guptas? | Daily Maverick Page 3 of §

income tax system in the world, and that its social expenditure is largely
progressive. But our ongoing challenge is of course economic growth to
sustain this, the creation of jobs to improve the standards of living for our
people, and the dramatic reduction of inequality by improving public
education, and changing the apartheid landscape of our cities.

The National Development Plan placed its central focus on how to eliminate
poverty and reduce inequality. These remain cornerstone challenges. They
will not disappear simply because some new nefarious slogan has been
dreamt up by Bell Pottinger and the Guptas. Our problem is that too many
people are left behind, excluded from aceess to good quality education, better
quality public service and an investment in skills. Of course, 23 years on, the
exclusion of so many still bears all of the dimensions of race, class, gender
and geography. These challenges are not wished away; we need action,
measurement and communication with all South Africans,

You would recall that the ANC’s 53rd national conference in 2012 adopted the
National Development Plan as a policy of the governing party. The NDP also
makes a series of recommendations about policing to deal with the realities of
poverty, and I would advise you to scrupulously examine these,
Unfortunately, it is as though the NDP has been abandoned as people who
occupy senior positions of State appear more focused on demonstrating that
it is their turn to eat.

It is odd, Fikile, that a mere five years ago you described President Zuma as a
“politically bankrupt” leader who married “every week”. Odd, because I have a
clear memory of an incident that may be at the heart of why you have
responded to me in the manner you have. That memory goes back to an ANC
NEC meeting in August 2011. There, the Fikile Mbalula we once knew wept as
he spoke. He explained he’d been called to Saxonwold by the Guptas in May
2009 and was told that he was being promoted from the position of Deputy
Minister of Police to Minister of Sport. A few days later the President
confirmed this change. The weeping was about the fact that he, Fikile, was
happy that he’d made it into Cabinet but that it was wrong to have learnt this
from Atul Gupta. That weeping was then, and this is now. Perhaps there are
still a few debts to be called in by Saxonwold.

£F
On the questions of service to our country and people, I will leave history to _ /%

https:/hwww.dailymaverick.co.za/opinionista/201 7-06-09-fikile-do-you-remember-the... 08/10/2018
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Fikile, do you remember the tears vou shed over the Guptas? | Daily Maverick Page 4 of 8

Jjudge my contribution.
Regards,
Trevor DM

.-/ While we have your attention...

' An increasingly rare commodity, quality independent journalism
| costs money - though not nearly as much as its absence.

| Every articte, every day, is our contribution to Defending Truth In South Africa, if
you would like to join us on this mission, you could do much worse than support
Daily Maverick's quest by becoming a Maverick Insider.

Click here to become a Maverick Insider and get a closer look at the Truth.

(https//www.dailymaverick.co.za/insider/?
utm._source=DM_Website&utm_medium=post-article)

Trevor Manuel

f - -s]
X Follow }[j Sa\;k& More {https:!/ww.dailymaverick.ccr.zafauthor/trevormanuerl) |

R.7r
#

https://wmv.dailymaverick.co.zafopinionista/izo17—06-09~ﬁid!e-do-you—remember-the..‘ 08/10/2018
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Trevor, Ithi Awazi | Dajly Maverick Page 1 of 11

T™L

Opinionista + Fikile Mbatula » 11 June 2017

Trevor, Ithi Awazi

€y 1611 Reactions

The ANC policy of “the eye of the needle” seems to have
been mostly needed on a few of those whe joined the
ANC in the mid-1980s from the glorious UDF, like
Trevor Manuel. The ANC simply mopped up all sorts;
that is why we have the Terror Lekotas who deny Iand
was grabbed by whites and are now fervent supporters
of black exploitation. Trevor Manuel has come out
boldly from his sleeper cell group within the movement.,

= M -

K Save
Amilear Cabral in Unity and Struggle says, “Do not confuse the reality you live
in with the ideas you have in your head”.

=

& Follow

This instructs us to avoid at all costs being unprincipled, ideologically dissonant
and susceptible to turncoats. Painfully, the Congress Movement hag seen a lot of
this since 1912, indeed prior to 1912, many among our forefathers joined with -
one or the other Boer or English company against their own. This is particularly
painful to see happen after our political liberation, as there is no valid survival
reason why this ideological betrayal should occur.

In 2002 ANC Umrabulo — Colonialism of a Special Type, the ANC wrote that; “...
because the concept of colonialism does not specify the nature of class relations

it was important to move beyond the form of the social formation to its content.
Colonialism of a special type was found to be perpetrated by a capitalist class, y
This class came to be known as “white monopoly capital”. £ z//

/

https:/fwww.dailymaverick.co,za/opinionista/2017-06-11 -trevor-ithi-awazi/ 09/10/2018
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Trevor, Ithi Awazi | Daily Maverick Page 2 of 11

In my opinion piece, which the editors of Daily Maverick styled as a letter to
Trevor Manuel, I pondered on the question of when exactly Manuel had turned
against the poor masses to be a client of minority capital. Indeed, with proper
analysis, we can easily track Manuel’s sidetracking from his push for
abandonment of the RDP for policies cemented on a neo-liberal framework that
has left the masses in severe economic devastation and as pariahs with a vote.
Manuel also caused the first wave of capital flight as he anthorised many outside
listings of South African companies without any usable conditions. This capital
flight punished the rand value,

We continue to fail to call ¢n those more powerful and remain extremely
powerful like Manuel to stick to the truth of our realities. Cabral taught that only
through principled study of prevailing realities can the theory of revolutionary
change be integrated with practical solutions.

Our reality is that the economy of South Africa is owned and controlled bya
monopolising class of capitalists who happen to be, in the main, white male
Afrikaners. This is an undeniable principle and a first point of departure, The
ANC lexieon as far back to its founding located this analysis as a central issue
from the voyages to London led by president Langalibalele Dube up to the
development of African Claims. Central to the Congress movement was the issue
of white monopoly over our land; this monopoly exists today.

Nelson Mandela’s own lips uttered the words “white monopoly capital” or
“minority capital” more than I can count. Mandela embodied the ANC lexicon
and Manuel has never been the authority on ANC policy; instead he was always
a spoiler.

Do I find myself at all surprised that Manuel denies this lexicon today? No.
Manuel shares this exact thought and exact phraseology with one Johann
Rupert, the son of Antonj Rupert who amassed his wealth through apartheid
corruption via the secret group Afrikaner Broerdebond that chose who
presidents and ministers in the Nationalist Party governments would be. At a
wine auction I attended years ago at one of Rupert’s own grand farms, he came
over to me and in the discussion he said, “White Monopoly Capital does not
exist, Fikile.” Hearing the exact words repeated by Manuel explains a lot,

hutps:/Awww.dailymaverick.co.zafopinionista/2017-06-1 1 -trevor-ithi-awazi/ 09/10/2018
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Trevor, Ithi Awazi | Daily Maverick Page 3 of 11

It was indeed not my intention to have a public back and forth with Manuel but
to make the point that the ANC has always identified White Monopoly Capital as
a key enemy of the people. Nelson Mandela spoke at length on this subject using
exactly that phrase. Ben Turok and Oliver Tambo have used the words, or as
Manuel says, “lexicon”; White Monopoly Capital.

Manuel decided not to deal with the substantive issues I raised in my opinion
but carry on at a tangent about me crying after the Gupta family got to know
possibly from someone close to the president that I was to be nominated to be
Sport Minister, we can all make guesses as to how this information may have
been leaked to them. Newspapers too usually get these sort of leaks and
announce or speculate about them before the president does.

Manuel did not understand what my tears were about. He did not get the point
then. I am on the record as stating that I have fundamental problems with the
way capitalists operate and the Gupta family show us just how ugly capitalism is.
Indeed, they abused privately learnt information to try.to position themselves

e T e A T AT R

gogiehow.'l was not about that, which is why I was the first to report this to the
open NEC. I am still not part of that; I do not stand for that. On the other hand,
Manuel was one of the people who at that NEC meeting did not agree with my

stance on the Gupta family. ==

I do not have aversions to Manuel's criticism of the Gupta family or even
President Jacob Zuma or any other ANC leader or member for that matter. My
opinion is pointed on Manuel's White Monopoly Capitalism denialism, the
ideological dissonance and betrayal,

As for the mud over the supposed utierances I made about the president’s
private life, I must take strong exception to this dirty trick. I am an African, I
come from the veins of polygamy and I do not look down upon my people and
myself. Any utterance attributed to me as disparaging over President Zuma’s
marital status is a lie and aims to only cause deliberate trouble or cast me above
my own people’s traditions. Indeed there is no way one can intellectually
connect supposed marital status comments with the issue of whether White
Monopoly Capital exists in South Africa or not. The mischief in bringing this up
is naked as Manuel’s selling out is.
B

b

hitps:/fwww.dailymaverick.co.za/opinionista/201 7-06-1 1 -trevor-ithi-awazi/ 09/10/2018
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It is a fact that the Manuel-Ramos clan has amassed great wealth. This family
business clearly started at Treasury and has worked itself at the financial
institutions of this country.

Perhaps we were supposed to raise moral and ethical issues when Manuel
recommended his then mistress to be Director-General of the Treasury - this
was a corrupt and gross abuse of one’s power. Indeed, with hindsight, the
nakedness of questionable dealings in particular in the deal approval of the
Absa-Barclays transaction arises.

Manuel has fingerprints in our people’s hunger and lack of fair economic
participation. The issue of income and wealth inequality is located squarely in
Manuel as the chief architect. Today he opines from the shadows as a person
who has the answers. He has no answers but a further neoliberal agenda to
fatten the Ruperts of the day. He boasts that the tax system is regarded as the
best in the world in terms of redistribution. Yes, indeed we are providing free
ARVs and social wages, free water and housing and so on. But why is this the
case? Manuel controlled policy direction for over 15 years in government and his
final years were left with him institutionalising the NDP. He is the course (sic) of
all the economic malaise of our people. He has fattened his friends and family.
They have thanked him with untold wealth gained through his access to power.

Manuel sold state assets to his friends and comrades; these friends were in turn
given money to finance by Manuel himself through the public workers’
pensions. Today, Telkom is a classic example of how Manuel instituted unethjcal

conduct.

The government-owned tourism operator company sale was a similar disaster.
Key to Manuel’s design was to maintain a fagade of stable fiscus management
for credit ratings and impressive growth numbers. This ended up with growth
that propped up Manuel’s current employers and his wife Maria Ramos's, The
growth and stable credit ratings Manuel chased led South Africa to have 17-
million social wage earners as he devastated the manufacturing sector.

It is Manuel’s legacy that we are dealing with. It is his personal doing, his ideas,
that have trapped our people into poverty and today he fashions himself ag the
best thing since sliced bread. It is his devastating austerity programme that 2 7/

https:/fwww.dailymaverick.co.za/opinionista/2017-06-1 1-trevor-ithi-awazi/ 09/10/2018
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destroyed our hopes. He alone plunged South Africa into darkness and enabled
his friends to collude and rob the state on various tenders including the FIFA
2010 build programme.

This current government found a mess plastered in beautiful wallpaper.
Manuel's mess. We are taking all the blame and it is acceptable because we
agreed when he forcefully made his points. Never again!

The devastation on our people did not end there. Infrastructure spending was
about (sic) halted; neither power stations nor dams were being built. This led to
South Africa missing riding the commoedity boom cycle that saw countries like
Brazil and Australia gaining great development while South Africa was plunged
in the dark over load shedding. This all occurred under Manuel. As workers
were stripped of their jobs, they were also not being taken care of in our
hospitals as courts had to compel him to budget for the HIV pandemic, an issue
he was against. Today, we are lectured by the same people that we are clueless
and bad, all this while we are dealing with their legacy.

Rupert and bankers got wealthier. They have rewarded him and even crowned
him our master himself, except it’s all delusions of grandeur. A selected black
elite alongside Manuel also enjoyed the good times. It took this current
government to look at how far transformation laws have gone; we discovered
only a small dent had been done.

From the construction industry to food production, from mining to
manufacturing and tourism, white male Afrikaners have the monopoly and this
cannot be denied. One company controls the alechol market, a couple of
construction firms control the built industry leading to corrupt collusion; today,
there is not a black-owned bank in the top five banks, they are all owned by a
small clique of white Afrikaner-males or foreigners. Manuel designed all this and

it is his legacy.

We have over 80% of our tax revenue dependent on whites; this is a monopoly

itself. It talks to earnings and who earns what. Who earns what talks to income
inequality. This inequality comes from an economy monopolised by white

males. This is the ideological issue we cannot find agreement on. The Gupta

family did not create the inequalities in South Africa but Manuel sold policies of
appeasing the very white monopoly capital he today defends so passionately, &/ f/

Manuel has effectively sold out. /{
A

bttps:/Awww.dailymaverick. co.za/opinionista/2017-06-1 1 -trevor-ithi-awazi/ 09/10/2018
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As Minister of Police, I am not interested in weighing in on issues; before public
servants I am responsible, this is why I will not be drawn into the issues around
the Gupta family except to reiterate that capitalists like them and Manuel do all
sort of things we cannot agree with. This includes Manuel’s wife's visit on (sic)
the ANC in December 2015 to demand who their preferred Minister of Finance
15. The Chamber of Mines does the same over the Minister of Mineral Resources.
I have called for regulation of lobbyist like the Guptas, Manuel’s wife, Chamber
of Mines, Bankers, and others like ther,

I have asked before, where were all thege people when Trevor Manuel appointed
or accepted Ajay Gupta as Cabinet Adviser on Economy and an “ambassador” of
brand South Africa during his term? Where were they when millions were
infected with HIV and not given proper medical care by their great Manuels?
When what mattered was credit ratings and not human development?

Do people know that the nuclear build that we are castigated over is a Manuel
brainchild? Does it matter that a part of the reason we run a high budget deficit
is because we care for our people ~ students in higher education and civil
servants’ wages? Wealthy politicians like Manuel who in a very sophisticated
manner enriched themselves in the most unethical and potentially corrupt ways
ever imaginable must not fool South Africans.

Let us be clear, it is not our intention to replace one monopoly with another, The
economy of the country must be equitably owned and the majority must
participate in direct ownership. Manuel can discuss names; we will stick to
discussing lived principles in their reality, as Cabral teaches.

The typical Manuel style of undermining fellow comrades and thinking that he
alone knows best makes him think I cannot write what I always talk about. Well,
the son of the capitalist class can always make these silly aversions but I will
continue to “write what I like” and say what I like whether he and his mightier
Stellenbosch best friends forever drink wine over it or not. DM 27
Y

Fikile Mbalula is an ANC NEC member and Minister of Police

The opinions expressed are not necessarily those of Daily Maverick. Uj/

I |

| while we have your atiention...

‘ An increasingly rare comimodity, quality independent journalism costs

https:/fwww.dailymaverick.co.za/opinionista/2017-06-1 ] -trevor-ithi-awazi/ 09/10/2018
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money - though not nearly as much as its absence. !

Every arlicle, every day, is cur contribution to Defending Truth in South Africa. If you
would Fke to join us on this mission, you could do much worse than support Daily
Maverick's quest by becoming a Maverick Insider.

| Click here to become a Maverick Insider and get a closer look at the Truth.

(hitps://www.dailymaverick.co.za/insider/?
.' utm_source=DIM_Websitedutm_medium=post-article)

L i —_— ———— e —— e —

Fikile Mbalula

i I Foiiow [[n Save]L& More (https:/fwww.daiiymaverick.co.za!author/ﬁki!e»mbalula/) J

Fikile Mbalule is the Minister of Police. See his Wikipedia profile.

MAVERICK
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JUDICIAL COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO ALLEGATIONS OF STATE
CAPTURE, CORRUPTION AND FRAUD IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR INCLUDING

ORGANS OF STATE

AFFIDAVIT

I, the undersigned,

TREVOR ANDREW MANUEL

#*
do hereby make cath and say:

THE PURPOSE OF THIS AFFIDAVIT

1 On 12 October 2018, 1 submitted an affidavit to the Commission explaining my
recollection of Mr Fikile Mbalula's confession at an ANC National Executive
Committee ("NEC") meeting in August 2011, conceming the first time he heard

of his appointment as the Minister of Sport and Recreation.

2  The Commission subsequently requested me to give an account of my
recollection of the practices and procedures followed under the successive
presidencies of Nelson Mandela, Thabo Mbeki, Kgalema Motlanthe and Jacob
Zuma for the appointment of cabinet Ministers. | have always understood that
the power of the president to appoint Cabinet ministers is a constitutionally
protected prerogative. Accordingly, Cabinet ministers serve at the pleasure of

a sitting president.
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3 | wish to emphasise that my knowledge of ministerial appointment practices
and process is limited to my personal experience of having been appointed as
a Minister on several occasions under successive presidencies. Because |
was never dismissed as a Minister, | cannot comment on the practices of any
of the presidents in this regard. | aiso cannot say whether my own experiences

constituted the norm.

4 | begin by providing an cverview of the positions | have held in govermnment
and in the ANC, before turning to my recollection of the appointment process

followed by each President under whom | served.

THE POSITIONS | HAVE HELD IN GOVERNMENT AND IN THE ANC

L

5 | served as a Member of Parliament and as a cabinet Minister from 1894 {o

2014.

5.1. From 1994 until 19986, | served as the Minister of Trade and Industry, during

the presidency of Nelson Mandeia.

5.2. From 1996 until 2009, | served as the Minister of Finance, during the

presidencies of Nelson Mandela, Thabo Mbeki and Kgalema Motlanthe.

5.3. Thereafter, from 2009 to 2014, | served as a Minister in the Presidency for

the National Planning Commission under Jacob Zuma.

6 With the exception of Kgalema Motlanthe, each of the aforementioned
presidents was the President of the ANC and, upon election by Parliament,

became the President of the Republic.
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| served on the ANC NEC from 1891 untit 2012. The NEC is the highest

decision-making body of the ANC.

From 1991 until 1994, | aiso served on the National Working Committee
("NWC"), a sub-committee of the NEC responsibie for implementing the
decisions of the NEC. It is the second highest decision-making body of the
ANC. At any point in time the NWC can consist of up to 20 people, including
the core leadership and representatives of the Veterans League, the Women's

League and the Youth League, amongst other recognised ANC sfructures.

The top leadership of the ANC, commonly referred to as the “top six”,
comprises the President, Deputy President, National Chairperson, Secretary

General, Deputy Secretary General and Treasurer General. | have never been

a member of the top six.

| can conifirm that, to the best of my recollection, for as long as | served on the
ANC NEC, it was never consulted by a President prior to the appointment or
dismissal of a member of his Cabinet. This is unsurprising. Many, if not ali, of
the approximately 80 NEC members would have aspired to serve government
in a ministerial role. It would only have stirred controversy for a president to

have raised such a matter with that body.

MY APPOINTMENT PROCESS UNDER EACH PRESIDENT

President Neilson Mandela

11

On 7 May 1994, four days prior to his inauguration, Neison Mandela met with
the NWC to discuss his choices for Cabinet. [t was clear that Mandela had

already decided on certain positions, and that others stili required negotiation
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14

15

16
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with the smaller political parties, which enjoyed support from more than 10

percent of the electorate.

Mandela informed the NWC that Thabo Mbeki would become the Deputy
President alongside FW De Klerk. Among other ministerial appointments that
| cannot recall, he also announced that { would take up the position as Minister

of Trade and Industry..

Approximately six to eight weeks after Mandela was elected President, he
phoned me to ask if we could meet at his Pretoria residence. Upon arrival, |
was greeted by then Deputy President Mbeki, and fellow Cabinet Ministers, Mr
Tito Mboweni (then Minister of Labour) and Mr Alec Erwin (then Deputy

Minister of Finance).

Mandela informed us that Derek Keys, who had served as Minister of Finance
from 1992, wanted to resign, and that a replacement was needed. Mandela
advised that he thought that Chris Liebenberg should be the new. Minister of
Finance, because he was concemed that some sectors of business were not

ready for an ANC appointment.

Licbenberg eventually took up the position of Minister of Finance on

16 September 1984,

in 1995, less than a year after Liebenberg was appointed, he tendered his

‘resignation.  Again, Mandela called me io a meeting with then Deputy

President Mbeki and informed me that | was to succeed Liebenberg, after his

resignation took effect on 4 April 1996.
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17 Mandela requested that | keep the news of my impending appointment
confidential and advised that | use this time to acquaint myself with the Finance
Ministry. Therefore, for approximately seven months, Liebenberg was the only

other person who knew of my forthcoming appointment.

18 In March 1996, Mandela informed me that Gill Marcus would serve as my
deputy, with Alec Erwin taking over as the Minister of Trade and industry.

Mandela gave me pemission to speak to Marcus about the appointment,

19  Aifter Liebenberg presented his 1896 budget speech, Mandela made a public
announcement that | would succeed Liebenberg as the Minister of Finance,
with Gill Marcus as my deputy. Mandela also announced that Alec Erwin would
take over my former position as the Minister of Trade and Industry, with
Phumzile Miambo-Ngcuka serving as his deputy. | was not aware of the latter

appointment until it was publicly announced.

President Thabo Mbeki

20 Shortly after the national elections in 1999, and the election of Thabo Mbeki
as President, | was invited to the presidential guesthouse in Pretoria after a
late evening gathering after a culiural event. The invited guests proceeded to
the main lounge area, and, one by one, we were called into the President's

private study in an adjacent room. § was one of the first to be cailed.

21 Upon entry into the study, | was greeted by President Mbeki and Kgalema
Motlanthe — then the Secretary-General of the ANC. The discussion was very
brief, Mbeki asked me if | would continue to serve as the Minister of Finance,

and | readily accepted. Thereafter | was requested to depart for home

immediately.
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22 When President Mbeki was re-elected in 2004, a similar procedure took place.

President Kgalema Motlanthe

23 Following the 2007 ANC elective conference in Polokwane, Jacab Zuma was
elected as the new ANC President. Cyril Ramaphosa succeeded Kgalema
Motlanthe as Deputy President of the ANC and Gwede Mantashe was elected

as Secretary-General.

24 Inthe early hours of 20 September 2008, the NEC resoived to recall President
Mbeki. In order to maintain stability in government, it also resolved that Hs
Members of Parliament should nominate Kgalema Motlanthe as the inferim

President for the remainder of Mbeki's term.

25 On the same day that the NEC took this decision | submitted my resignation
from Cabinet to President Mbeki before he agreed to step down. Having done
that, | shared a copy of the letter with both Zuma, as President of the ANC and

Motlanthe, who at the time was the Deputy President of the ANC.

26 Zuma reacted by requesting me io withdraw my letter of resignation. However,
because | felt duty-bound to serve at the pleasure of the sitting President, |
informed Motlanthe that | would be available to serve, in any capacity, if called

upon {0 do 56 in a Cabinet of his choice.

27 On 21 September 2008, Mbeki resigned as President of the Republic, after

being recalied by the NEC.

28 |was abroad when these events took place. | returned on 24 September 2008.

That evening, Motianthe phoned me and asked whether | would be available

io serve as the Minister of Finance. tj
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29 On 25 September 2008, Parliament heid a special session to elect Motlanthe
as the interim President of the Republic. Baleka Mbete was elected as the
Deputy President. On the very same day, Motlanthe announced his Cabinet,

in which 1 was appointed Minister of Finance.

President Jacob Zuma:

30 1 was nominated by the ANC to serve as a Member of Parliament. Nominees
are expected {0 sign an acceptance form in the ANC. At the time, the ANC's

practice was to elect MPs through an internal nomination and election.

31 1delayed signing in February 2008, which then resulted in a meeting at Luthuli
House with Zuma and Mantashe to discuss my delay. The discussion led to
my request to be relieved of the responsibility of Finance Minister. | declined
the nomination because, having been the longest serving Minister of Finance,

I felt that a change in the leadership of Finance ministry was necessary.

32 Zuma accepted my stance, but asked whether | would nevertheless avail
myself for a different position in government. He explained that he had been
considering a new portfolio, but that he could not say anything about it given

the highly sensitive and political nature of Cabinet appointments.

33 On 10 May 2009, very scon after the national elections, | was invited to the
presidential guest house in Pretoria. President Zuma was accompanied by the
Secretary-General of the ANC, Gwede Mantashe. He asked whether | would

serve in his Cabinet as a Minister'in the Presidency. i agreed.

34 Those in attendance at the presidential guest house were asked o return the

following day for a press conference, where Zuma announced his Cabinet.
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35 | was officially sworn in on 11 May 2009 as Minister in the Presidency for the

National Planning Commission, a role that | occupied until 2014.

TREVOR ANDREW MANUEL

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the deponent has acknowledged that he knows and
understands the contents of this affidavit, which was signed and swormn before me

at  SANDToA) on the {¢""day of FEBRUARY 2010, the

regulations contained in Government Notice No R1258 of 21 July 1972, as

amended, and Government Notice No R1648 of 19 August 1977, as amended,

having been complied with.

—
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RULE 3.4
APPLICATION

AJAY KUMAR GUPTA
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IN THE JUDICIAL COMMISSION OF ENQUIRY TO ENQUIRE INTO
ALLEGATIONS OF STATE CAPTURE, CORRUPTION AND FRAUD IN THE
PUBLIC SECTOR IN ORGANS OF STATE

AJAY KUMAR GUPTA Applicant

NOTICE OF APPLICATION IN TERMS OF RULE 3.4 OF THE RULES OF THE
COMMISSION

Take notice that the Applicant hereby makes application to the Commissioner for
leave to cross-examine the witness, Mr. Trevor Andrew Manuel, in relation to the
whole of the contents of his affidavit. The respects in which the witness's statement
is disputed and denied and the grounds for the disputes and denials are self-evident

from the annexed statement of Mr. Ajay Kumar Gupta.

In considering this request to cross-examine the witness, the Commissioner is asked

to consider and indeed reconsider the foliowing;~

1. The function of the Commission is to establish the truth in relation to the areas

of enquiry referred to in terms of reference.

2. Although the Commission’s work is that of an enquiry and the process of the

Commission is not the same as a civil or criminal trial, it is nevertheless so that



cross-examination has historically been shown to be the best mechanism for

testing the reliability and veracity of evidence tendered by a withess.

3. Without cross-examination, and more particularly adeguate and efiective cross-
examination, of contentious evidence the Commission would be deprived of this
essential tool for the testing of the reliability and veracity of evidence placed

before it.

4.  The statement of Ajar Kumar Gupta raises clear disputes of fact and
underpinned by his own evidence and demonstrates the need to test the

reliability of the witness that is to give evidence before the Commission.

Be pleased to find annexed the sworn statement of Ajay Kumar Gupta together with

annexures which supports this application to cross-examine.

Dated at Johannesburg this 13th day of November 2018.

BDK Attorneys

David H Botha du Plessis & Kruger Incorporated
Applicant’s Attorneys

Ground Floor, Oxford Terrace

 30n9" Street

2
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TO:

THE COMMISSION
The Secretary

2™ Fioor, Hillside House
17 Empire Road
Parktown
Johannesburg

Clo Mabunda Incorporated
2 Protea Road
Bedfordview

Tel: 011 450 2284

Fax: 011 450 1565

Email: busani@mbundainc.co.za

Ref. Mr. P. B. Mabunda

Houghton Estate

P O Box 8013

Docex 243

Johannesburg

Tel: 011 838 1214

Fax: 011 836 8740

Ref: Mr R C Krause/mv/Gupta
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STATEMENT BY AJAY KUMAR GUPTA

As will be seen from the contents of this statement | hotly dispute the
accuracy of the contents of Mr Manuel's statement, even though the contents

are to a large extent hearsay as to the core events in any event.

I must point out that there appears to be an error in the notice in terms of Rule
3.3 addressed to my brother, Mr. Atul Kumar Gupta, in that in paragraph 3
thereof it is said that the allegations set out in the evidence of Mr. Manuel
implicates or may implicate him in that he is alleged uniawfylly to have
interfered in the appoint of Mr. Fikile Mbalula as the Minister of the Police.
Even on a reading of Mr. Manuel's affidavit he mentions Mr. Mbalula as baing
made the Minister of Sport and Recreation. | believe this simply is an sfror
and | do not seek to take advantage of that error. | will respond to the

contents of Mr. Manuel's affidavit in its terms.

At the outset let me state categorically that my brother, Mr Atul Gupta, has
never met Mr Fikile Mbalula and has never had any discussion with him
whatsoever, never mind one in which the possibility of him becoming a
Minister of State was discussed. At best, they may have greeted on another

in passing.

It is indeed I, Ajay Gupta, that had & discussion with him about his potentialty
becoming a Minister. | refer to a few annexures hereto which are newspaper

articles from the time in October 2010 when Mr. Fikile M it\fg &;.55; abinet
A
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reshuffie Dy the then President Jacob Zuma was made the Minister for Sport
and Recreation. | recall reading in the press articles leading up 10 President
Jacob Zuma's cabinet reshuffle and picking up from the press the likelihood
that Mr Mbalula would become a full minister.  In this regard | refer for
example to an article published o the 24" October 2010 in the publication Fin
24 which date naturally eccurs prior to the 31* October 2010 when President
Zuma reshuified his cabinet. 1 quote from the Fin 24 article annexed hereto
marked "AG1". “The weekend Argus reported that deputy Police Minister
Fikile Mbalula was set to take up a full cabinet post as a reward for leatling the
campaign that saw Zuma elected ANC President in 2007* 1 think | read of
this in a Sunday newspaper but | am not entirety certain which newspaper

carried the article.

I annex a further extract from |OL.co.za, marked “AG2", in which that
publication reports the weekend Argus newspaper having reported on
passible key changes to the cabinet of President Zuma and where in that
publication reports the weekend Argus’ having reported that ‘Deputy Police
Minister Fikile Mbalula was set to take up a full cabinet post as a reward for

the leadling the campaign that saw Zuma elected ANC President in 200 7’

tannex a further article marked "AG3” from the publication, IOL, which in twm
also quotes the weekend Argus newspaper as saying that there was several
“possible key changes” io the cabinet and in which the newspaper is reported

that Deputy Minister Fikile Mbaiuia was set to take up a fuil cabinet post as a

2007. f:;g&ms% W
VA
A _%wgg\%,
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I did indeed meet with and have a conversation with Mr. Mbalula, but it was
not at my house in Saxonwold and it did not involve my brother Atul. tn fact it
took place at my office at Sahara Computers when Mr. Mbalula paid me a
visit.  Having picked up from the newspapers that he was highly likely to be
appointed a full Minister | jokingty congratulated him on his apparently
imminent appointment as a full Minister. | did not know this as afact. lalso

did not know which Ministry he might be appointed to.

if the Commission takes the trouble to trawl through the newspapers and
other journalistic work of the time it will find that an imminent cabinet reshuffle
was very much debated in the newspapers and my experience is that in this

regard there is very often no smoke without a fire.

I do not know what Mr. Mbalula may have said at a National Executive
Committee Meeting but it would have been wrong and inaccurate of him to
have said that | had congratulated him on becoming or being about to become
the Minister of Sport and Recreation. The newspapers did not report at that
time. The newspapers carried only a report of the possible elevation of Mr.

Mhalula to a full ministerial post.

There is further speculation in the newspapers, post the announcement,
where somehow erroneously it is reported that this Joking congra:ulat_ion of
mine to Mr. Mbalula which took place prior to the 31% October 2010 was done

by Atul Gupta. This is not comect.
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12,

13.

[ believe that Mr. Trevor Manuel has become completely confused and that
his memory seems to be linked to and been affected by some spat which he

has had historically and politically with Mr. Mbalula,

i would suggest that the Commission hear frem Mr. Mbalula himself as to
whether | in fact congratulated him on the fact or told him that he would be &
Minister ar indeed the Minister of Sport and Recreation. | am sure he will
confirm my version in this regard,  Indications are that he will. In this regard |
refer to an article which appeared in the Business Day of 8 November 2018,

marked “AG4".

in conclusion | must observe that the Notice in terms of Rule 3.3 given to my
brother indicates in paragraph 3.1 thereof that he unlawfully interfered in the
appoiniment of Mr. Fikile Mbalula as the Minister of Police. As | say | am
sure it is a mistake to have referred to the appointment of Mr, Mbalula as the
Minister of Police but there is an even greater peint and that is nothing in that
which Mr. Trevor Manuel has to say amounts to an allegation that | “uniawiiily
Interfered in the appointment of Mr. Mbalula”. Nothing in that affidavit comes

arywhere near close 1o making that averment.

THUS DONE AND SIGNED at DUBAIL, UNITED ARAB EMIRATES, on this the 13"

day of November 2018, 4

A
Q"

) |
AJAY KUMAR GUPTA
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I certify that this affidavit was signed and swom to before me at DUBAI, UNITED
ARAB EMIRATES, on this the 13" day of November 2018 by the deponent who
acknowledged that he knows and understands the contents of this affidavit, has no
objection to taking this oath, considers this oath to be binding on his conscience and
uttered the following words: 1 swear that the contents of this affidavit are both yrue

and correct, so help me Gog.!

COMMISSIONER OF OATHS

EX OME0 eygocH MATHAMBOLE
{Vice Constd Administration)

Name: th
(SOUTH AFRICAR CONSULATE GERERAL Cgﬁﬁﬁgﬁ;ﬁ%ﬁﬁazﬁﬁ%@
Address: \BHR:IDUBAI-LAFE.
13 ROV 2018
’ DHIBAIL

Capacity
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1272018 Trever Manuai gets new role . '

fin24

Trevor Manuel gets new role

20351024 2233

Fin24, Reutars and Sapa

Jahznnesburg — Governmenl announced on. Sunday night (hat Minister 1 the Prasidency rasponsible for ihe Mational Planning
Commisstan, Trever Meruel, vl take on 8 new mls assigling Prasident Jacob Zuma with 2 Pan-African infrastruciure
developeent programme,

While & spakespeison denied media Toports hat the pro-business Manuel ailght Jeave hig {ob, 00 Indinatien was given whethaer
Zuime B preparing a pebinat reshufle,

The Waskend Amus nawsoapsr 1eporlod on Sundey hat Zuena wes st to make soverat "hosslbla key changes” o hia wabingt,
which wae holding a special mesting on onday o a rew sconomic growth strateqgy,

The Sunday indopandest nawspaps also saporied that Zums wee polsed 1o rearfange his cabinel, and that Manuel might be
among thoss to depirt.

“Oriy the prasident knows whathat or not lhere will be a reshulle,” cabiniet spok Themba Maseks suld in ah.emailod
slatemant,

Govemment spokesparson Dumisa Jele saki Manual wowld stey in his cuttant posifion whils glseo ieking on tha rew roki,
“W's not 16 replce his fob,” Jelo said of Manusl's naw rle, “He stil Is fuad of the Nattoral Planning Gomrmisalon,”
Spagulalion

Fanuel, u lormer finares minkster, has publicly disagraed with tise fefi-feaning allies of tha kg ANG, His departure oould have
denlad Invesior confitence in the ANG,

[c. saldina {hat Manue! wil assiot Zume "to fwllil s new esponstbility ss ihe Afrtan Unisn thamplan of
tha Nodh-Soulk infrastnucture devetopment cerridor i e ontinent”,

The African Unlon has desigaated Zuma as 2 “pelliicel champion" &f rond and ral nke between tho continent,

"We have (he eromous task of promoting tangiile actign, and have o moblise Ior the development of Infasingt
in the sonlinent. Tha tirme has come to move beyond concaplualisetion to concrela projects, Wo brust that we will be abla o
motillae the privale sector to work with us on Bis massive bk very fmpastant project” Zuma sald In a stelément.

Wewspapers speculated on Sunday that Mamef eowld take Up ypa-sanior peshion either at the Warld Bnk.or inthe New
Partnarship for Afiioa's Davelopment,

Angiher tumour was the rapl of Btats § Ministor Siyabunga Gwate, whose wife Gheryt i on irial on drug
trafiicking charges, wilh Defence and Miitary Vatarana Mintsler Lindhwe Stauly,

Deputy Ads and Cullure Minlsler Payj Mashailia way got for & ff sabinal Post; possibly repfacing Ads and Cullure Mirister Ly
Kinpwana,

Tha Weskend Argus reporied thal Depuly Pollce Mintster Fikile Mbalula wes sal to take up & figll catlned posi s 5 reawar for
tgading the campaign that sew Zona elected ANC prasidant In 2607,

Qther mint fnip lous pasidons intludad Cor ] Saivices Minisior Nosiviwa Maplsa-Ngakula and Water and
Environmental Affairz Miaiater Buyshus Sonfics snd Mining Winlsier Susan Shabangu.

Linfalr

Ministerin the Presit ¥ Gatfing Chabane has slayad mum on reparts that PrasidentJacob 2Zuma ls 501t roshifio hia
cablnat.

Chabang loid journalists at a prass confersnce in Brotoris lhat ministors ware conlinuing to do thelr work as usual and thal o
question on the reshufle was urfalr,

“Thie questian Is unfair* Chabasia seid. *We are used 1o It, Rumoes bout & Cablnat reshuliie have bean around sing the
Cabinet was formad.

"Minlslers are dolng thale work a8 usyal

Cormments o, of

chils - 2090-10.24 23:40 ‘,féi”"f”‘ﬂg"k “
«-The Afloen Union tias desipnated Zama as 2 *pollicat chatapion” of road and rall inks botween tha camllnent. snt thal @}‘Q &'Q g 3,
interasting? With the road condilions in Sacdeleriorating rapldly and Trensnet shutting down sall services acrase lhip c'uunlr'r/ L5 o~ %;- \

whal 3l does Spyker LIZ) biing i the provision of this Infrastruciure across the conlingnt7?
jurg - 200-10-24 23:85 {]-
nige, sousds e something posllive hare, baller raads Tor afrdca, me mmnuel it & wise goy lels hopa him and JZ gst onte, -;'E
somaiiirig good hare ’ \-g
wayre - 2010.10.25 §1:36
Sory.... Chabant 7 Whet work Is ihat,., 777 Coauplon. .nepotism...cromylsm P77 or fust plaintsck or of sanvize delivary 779

https: e Bn24 comfeconomy/manuel-getsnew-role-20101024
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111212018 Cabinet restiuffle Just rumours' | 10L News A& L

Cabinet reshuffle just rumours’

POLITICS / 24 OCTOBER 2010, 2:13PM/

Performance Monitoring and Evaluation Minister Collins Chabane pledged his support to fimmy Manyi as calis mounted
for the beieaguered government spokesinan's head, Photo: In dependent Newspapers

Minister In the Prasidency Colling Chabane has stayed mum on reports that President Jacob
Zuma is set to reshuffle his Cabingt,

-Chabane toid journalists at a presa conference in Pretoria that ministers were continuing to do
their work as-usual and that a question on the reshuffle was “unfait”,

“The question is unfair,” Chabane said. "We are used to it. Rumours about a Cabinet reshuffle
have been around since the Cabinet was formed.

“Ministers are doing thair work as ususl.”

The Weekend Argus newspaper reported on Sunday that Zuma was set to make seversl
‘possible key changes” to his Cabinet, which was hoiding a special meeting on Monday on a
new sconomic growih strategy.

One possible change was the departure of Mirister in the Presidency for Flanning, Trever
Manuel, to take up a senior position either at the World Bank or in the New Partnership for
Alrica's Devalopment.

Another was the replacement of State Security Minister Siyabonga Cwele, whose wife Cheryl is @/
on trial on drug trafficking charges, with Defence and Military Veterans Minister Lindiwe Sias

Deputy Arts and Culture Minister Paul Mashatile was set for a full Cabinet post, possi
replacing Ants and Cutture Minister Luty Xingwana.

https:.'waw.-InLmzan'naws!polillcsfcabigat-reshufﬂe-jusl-rumnufs-saaae?
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11210t Cabinet rashuffie ‘just rumours' | 101 News

The newspaper reported that Deputy Police Minisier Fikile Mbalula was set to take up g full

ggéa;net Post as & reward for leading the campaign that saw Zuma slected ANC president in

Othgr Ministers in precarious positions included Correctional Services Minister Nosiviwg
Mapisa-Ngaku;a and Water and Environmental Affairs Minister Buyelwa Sonjica and Mining

&

Minister Susan Shabangu. - Sapa

hitps:fwwwiol.co.zalnews/politicsicabinet-reshufile-ust-ruemours- 688387
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Reshuffle rumours rife for Zuma's cabinet

KWAZULL-NATAL /24 OCTOBER 2010, 08:06AM / CHRISTELLE TERREBLAN?HE GAYE DAVIS AND CARIEN DU PLESSIS
s ] S

Ministerin the Presidency. Planning Commission, Trevor Manuel, Photo: Phill Magakoe

In a week that couid turn out to be a watershed moment for South Aftica, the cgbinst is get to
acopt a New Growth Path strateqy — aimed at sefting the stage for the creation of &
developmental state and conditions that will allow the ANC to make good on its promises of
jobs and closing the equality gap.

It is understood that President Jacob Zuma is poised to reshuffle his cabinet, despite emphatic
denials from the Presidency.

Souress say Minister in the Presidency for Planning Trevor Manuel *threw a tantrum” when the
cabinet commitiss on economic afairs was finalising the draft policy on Wednesday for
adoption at a special cabinet meeting tomorrow.

He apparently suggestad the new strategy would ensure that South Aftica’s sconomig
resiience and stability would “go down the grain”. The plan is understood to include the pxtent
to which macro-economic poficy should be amended:

Manuel as finance minister presided over the years when Gear ruled, fuelling tesentment in the
labour movement and the lsft due to jobless economic growih,

The cabinet's adoption of the new policy could see the “left shift” deranded at the ANC's,.#7;
Polokwane conference.

Mantiel is rumeured ta be planning an exit from the government, with sources various|
indicating he could take up a position at the Worlg Bank in the iong term, or be involve:
New Parinership for Africa's Development (Nepad) in the short tarm. 3

htms:!hvwmiul.co.mmswa.'snum-afrrcs.'kmzulu—natalireshu!ﬂe-rumoms-ri@for«zumas-eahinst-aasaza
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1171212018 Reshufila rusnours rife for Zuima's cabitet | JOL News

He is steering the National Planning Commission, which has until next Novermber to produce a
iohg-term strategic plan for the country, Yesterday, Manuel — through chief government
spokesman Themba Maseko - said teports about his departure were “nothing but a fishing
axpedition”,

“There is no truth to any rumour that he has resigned or intends to tesign," Maseko said,

Manuel would not respond to queries about losing his temper auring discussions on the New
Economic Growth Path strategy.

A week ago, before his state visit to Egypt, and last week on his return, he was engaged in
meeting ministers one on one to discuss delivery agreemenis.

These meetings Involved checking to see that corresponding agreemeants had been signed
between ministers and top department officials, and to find out what was needad to get the job
dona,

Zuma hinted during his Egypt state visit last week at a potential reshuffle — and aleo that
Manuel was up for a Nepad job.

It is understood this involves setting up an agency to co-ordinate Africa's infrastructure
investments, and does not mean he wouid have fo reiinquish his duties as minister for planning,

However, there were also strong suggestions last week that a top post at the World Bank looms
in Manuet's future,

Before he made way for Pravin Gordhan last yaar, Manuel was the world's longest reigning
finance minister, having held the position for 13 years from 1896, He is highly respected in
international finarce and hanking circles,

Some suggested an announcement as soon as last week, but Finance Minister Pravin Qordhan
is due to make a major budget policy announcement when he delivers his madium term budget
policy statement in Parliament on Wednesday.

Presidential spokesman Zizi Kodwa said yesterday ho was not aware of any minister bowing
out.

He reiterated that Zuma's consultations with ministers on delivery agresments « the targets and
outputs that need to be reached in key areas such as housing, health, and education - had
“nothing to do with a cabinat reshuffle”.

“Reshuffling (the cabinet) is occasioned by specific reasons, and it is not on the cards or plans
of the president," Kodwa said.

There was talk that if Manue! were to leave, his planning position would g0 to National
Assembly Speaker Max Sisulu, who was less than enthusiastic about being deployed to the
legisiaturs in the first place. ,

Sisuly, who is on a week-ong official visit to China, has headed the tuling party’s nations!
executive committee's subcommittee on ecohomic transformation for a decade.
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Trever Manuel expected to tes tify about Mbalula’s
Gupta confession

Former finance minister, in an open letter in 2018, said Fikile Mbalula told the ANC NEC
that Atul Gupta ioformed him he would be appointed sports minister

09 Novembeﬂls 09 Karyn Maughan

Former sports minfiter Fikile Mbalola. Picture; Girrs/ ELMOND JIVANE

Former finarice tuinister Trevor Manuel i3 expecled to finpiicate Atal Gupta at the.gtate caphure inquizy with
testimony that suggests the middle Qupta brother played = role frrthe appointment of Fikile Mbalulz 25 sports
riinizter.

Buton Thursday, Mealula told Business Day that it was not Atul Gupta who sppeated to have foreknowledge.of hig
2010 agipointment, but rather is brother Alvy, : 1

“Tt was'not Atn] who congratulated me about petting the position of sporis minister, Tt was Ajay. The comission
has asked-me about this, but I heven’t given it a siatement, 'm hotrunning away fiom this inquiry. vy auswerad alf
thelr questions:to the bestof my ability and I'm willing to-testiy,” Mbslil said,

Ths Guptas, who have close relations with fonmer president Facol Zuma and his son Dudnzane; have come under
seatiny at the Zondo comuissian, whete several witnessus ltave testified about their attempts at polittenl infinence
for their commerciat benefit,

The Guptes” lawyers, megrwhile, have rellerated that Al Yhas never mat Mr Fikile Mbsiuls® — and say that Ajey
had congratwiated Mbalula us & result of "positive and public medie speculstion” that he would be appointed ay
sports minister,

Maauel, whe iz expected to testify at the Zondo.commission on Movember 27, delailed inan ogen Jetter published
by Daily Mavesick in Jine 2017 how Mbaluls hed fuade a tearfid confession to the ANS's netional exequtive
committes (WEC).at a meeling in 2011 about his interaction with Ayl Gupta,

Ts influeace of the Gupta fa mily
being suismered to the Gupta-compound in Saxonweld

weas the deputy minlster of police,

Mbalala reiterated to Business Day thet hs woald not deny whet he had said at e ANC NRC meeting, “whick w
witnessad by 80.peopie, inchuding [thets] presideiit Javob Zuga”, L
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HNM2z0a Trever Manue! expactad tor teestify-about ithalula's Gupta canfession
“T wag the first one i the ANC.to rafse concern aboyt the Guptag, Mine.was—n,priqcipled statement that 1 mads o the
ANC a8 .5 warning.”
Mbatiia said he had. met with Ajay-Gupta over his statement to the meeting, a5 Afay said misundsrstood hig™, He
said he wonld detai] thig méatitg filly if and when he was called on to testify,

1t is wnclear whether the Gupias will apply to Cross-examine Mannel, given that they have bean refiisod the iight o
erosg-examine other witnessay unless thay agree o return to 34 to give vvidence.
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